
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Licensing Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 6 July 2011 
7.00 pm 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1 - HAMMERSMITH TOWN HALL 
KING STREET W6 9JU 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Administration: Opposition 
Councillor Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler 
(Chairman) 
Councillor Adronie Alford 
Councillor Joe Carlebach 
Councillor Tom Crofts 
Councillor Marcus Ginn 
Councillor Peter Graham 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
Councillor Lucy Ivimy 
Councillor Alex Karmel 
Councillor Matt Thorley 
 
 

Councillor Colin Aherne 
Councillor Daryl Brown 
Councillor Michael Cartwright 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
Councillor Caroline Needham 
 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Owen Rees 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

28 June 2011 
 

 
 



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Licensing Committee 
Agenda 

 
6 July 2011 

 
 
Item  Pages 
1. MINUTES  1 - 5 
 To approve as an accurate record, and the Chairman to sign, the 

minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12th October 2011.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 If a Councillor has any prejudicial or personal interest in a particular 

report he/she should declare the existence and nature of the interest at 
the commencement of the consideration of the item or as soon as it 
becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken, unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee. 
 
Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration, unless the disability 
has been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4. ANNUAL LICENSING UPDATE  6 - 47 
 This report comprises an update on Licensing activity for the 2010-11 

municipal year, and on planned activity in the 2011-12 municipal year. In 
addition, the Committee will receive short presentations on aspects of 
the report, including a short presentation from Police Sergeant Stuart 
Ratcliffe, Licensing Sergeant for Hammersmith and Fulham.  

 

 



. London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 12 October 2010 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Victoria Brocklebank-Fowler (Chairman), 
Joe Carlebach, Marcus Ginn, Peter Graham, Steve Hamilton, Alex Karmel, Matt Thorley, 
Colin Aherne, Wesley Harcourt and Caroline Needham 
 
Other Councillors:  Councillor Greg Smith 
 
Officers:   
Nick Austin, Assistant Director- Public Protection & Safety 
Valerie Ellison, Head of Commercial Operations 
Sanju Manji, Trading Standards & Licensing Manager 
Stephanie Needham, Commercial Services Manager 
Jon Gorst, Principal Environmental Services Lawyer 
Owen Rees, Committee Coordinator 
 
 

 
1. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 14TH JANUARY 2010  

 
RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 January 2010 be agreed and signed as an 
accurate record of the proceedings. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Alford, Cartwright, Cooney 
and Ivimy. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4. SEXUAL ESTABLISHMENT VENUES AND SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING 
POLICY  
 
Stephanie Needham, Commercial Services Manager, gave a presentation to the 
Committee on the proposed Sexual Establishment Venues Licensing Policy. As a 
result of the Policing and Crime Act 2009, local authorities have the ability to adopt 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



extra powers with regard to the licensing of sex establishments. In conjunction with 
the adoption of these powers, it was proposed that the Council adopt the Sexual 
Establishment Venues Licensing Policy, which set out the criteria under which 
such venues would be licensed. 
 
Stephanie Needham set out the process of consultation to which the draft policy 
had been subject to, and the responses received. She said that the policy included 
the principle of relevant locality, i.e. that a premises’ surroundings would be taken 
into account when deciding whether to grant a licence. She listed the borough’s 
existing sex establishments- Simply Pleasure, Secrets, and the Erotica Exhibition 
held under a Temporary Licence. She explained the activities for which they were 
licensed, the fees for which they were currently liable and what effect the change in 
policy would be likely to have. She explained the process by which licences would 
be converted after the adoption of the new powers, and the timescale for doing so.  
 
The level of fees had yet to be agreed, and would be set as part of the annual fee 
setting process; in setting them, the Council would need to take into account the 
LACORS guidance and EU Services Directive on fee levels. Fees would be set at 
a level to recover the costs of a new application, with the renewal fees for some 
licences potentially being reduced. 
 
Nick Austin, Assistant Director of Public Protection and Safety, said that the 
introduction of the policy had allowed wider consultation with residents and would  
allow the Council additional controls over such establishments. 
 
Councillor Aherne raised concerns that the policy made reference to lap dancing, 
which he understood to be illegal. Valerie Ellison, Head of Commercial Services, 
said that the terminology was drawn from Home Office guidance, which had 
included lap dancing, as it is commonly understood, under paragraph 2.3, as an 
example of relevant entertainment. Paragraph 2.4 of the guidance recognises that 
the understanding of the exact nature of the description of lapdancing may vary 
and should be treated as indicative and that decisions to grant licences should be 
based on the content of the entertainment. It did not mean that the Council would 
or could licence activity that was illegal.  
 
Councillor Ginn asked about the process for setting fees, and how pricing would be 
decided. Valerie Ellison said that the Council needed to justify the level of fee 
charged. In the light of the recent application to open the Fox strip club, the Council 
had a good sense of the high costs involved in processing such an application. 
Under the new legislation, the Council would be able to charge any agreed fee on 
the first day that applications were received.  
 
With regard to the level of fees, Councillor Carlebach said that the current level of 
fees did not seem to reflect the level of disruption caused by the various 
businesses, and that a pro-rata cost for temporary licences did not appear likely to 
recover the full cost of their administration. Valerie Ellison said that such issues 
would be considered in the review of fees. Councillor Smith said that the fee 
payable was not available to be used to defray the costs of policing venues, but 
that the conditions under which a licence was granted might reflect this. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 

Page 2



Full Council be recommended to agree 
i. That schedule 3 (as amended) to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 shall apply to its area and shall come into force on 1st April 
2011, and; 
 
ii. That the Council adopt the levels of the appropriate maximum number of sex 
establishments within specified areas of the borough as set out at paragraph 6 of 
the Sex Establishment Policy, and; 
 
iii. That the Council make and adopt the regulations which provide a set of 
standard conditions applicable to sex establishments, and; 
 
iv. That Full Council adopt the Sex Establishment Policy. 
 
 
 
 
 

5. REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2010  
 
The Committee received and reviewed the revised Statement of Licensing Policy, 
produced as part of a three-year review. 
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 
Full Council agree that the Statement of Licensing Policy be adopted.  
 

6. LICENSING LAW UPDATE  
 
Jon Gorst, Principal Environmental Services Lawyer, gave a presentation on the 
legal aspects of the Licensing process. The presentation covered appeals against 
decisions taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee, reviews brought by Responsible 
Authorities, relevant recent case law and possible future revisions to legislation. 
 
6 appeals had been made against Sub-Committee decisions in the period since 
the last meeting- The Green, The Crescent, Jazz, Fulham Fried Chicken, 
Sainsbury’s Askew Road, and Fiesta Havana. The Council had reached 
agreement over the Green, the appeals by The Crescent and Jazz were 
withdrawn, the appeals by Sainsbury’s Askew Road and Fiesta Havana were 
pending and the appeal for Fulham Fried Chicken had been upheld.  
 
Jon Gorst described some of the common factors in the outcome of appeals. It 
appeared that magistrates wished to see the weight of evidence against the 
specific premises itself, rather than evidence of anti-social behaviour in the area as 
a whole. This had informed the decisions taken by the Council and applicant in the 
appeals by The Green and Jazz; and in the case of Fulham Fried Chicken, where 
surprisingly, the magistrate had allowed the hours applied for, even though the 
premises fell within the Saturation Zone established in Fulham, on the grounds that 
it did not sell alcohol and that there were other takeaways operating similar hours 
in the area.  
 

Page 3



He then described the judicial review brought against the Council by Prime Food 
regarding a closure order. The licence holder’s company had become insolvent, 
and the Council had had not received an interim authority notice within the required 
time limit, therefore the premises licence covering the two premises lapsed and a 
letter was given to the premises advising them of this. Prime Food had contended 
that this was effectively a closure order, and in breach of the Licensing Act. The 
Court had found for the Council, and awarded costs. 
 
Jon Gorst also described the 4 reviews brought during the year, at Jazz, 69 
Goldhawk Road, Chateau 6, 563 Fulham Road, 115-117 Uxbridge Road and The 
Raven, 376 Goldhawk Road, and which had been heard by the Sub-Committee.  
 
Councillor Aherne said that it would be helpful to receive the information on 
appeals in a written report, in the style of the reports received by the Planning 
Applications Committee. The Committee requested that officers present 
information on appeals and reviews brought in a similar format to future meetings. 
 
In relation to changes in legislation, Jon Gorst then described the impact of Section 
33 of the Policing and Crime Act 2008, which expanded the definition of Interested 
Parties to include Councillors. Under the revised regulations, Councillors could not 
only submit representations on applications, but could also initiate a review of a 
premises licence. 
 
In relation to case law, the most relevant recent decision remained Thwaites PLC 
vs Wirral Borough Council. The decision had established that Section 182 
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State was guidance not statute. Licensing 
Authorities should, therefore, take it into account as an important factor in their 
decision making, but not one that overrode statute. 
 
In relation to recent discussions at a Licensing Sub-Committee hearing regarding 
the impact of long-established premises on new residents, Jon Gorst described the 
verdict reached in the case of Miller vs Jackson, where it was found that, in relation 
to a long established cricket ground bordering on a residential garden, the 
resident’s objections were of less value for the cricket ground having been 
established before their arrival. The decision did not have a direct bearing on 
licensing, nor form a precedent, but had interesting parallels to some issues 
encountered.  
 
With regard to recent changes to the Licensing Act, Jon Gorst said that from 
October 2010, changes would be introduced on the notification of Temporary 
Event Notices (TENs), giving greater notice to the Police, new procedures for the 
death, incapacity or insolvency of the licence holder and new mandatory conditions 
on proof of age schemes. With regard to possible reforms, measures under 
consideration included the ability to ban the  sale of low-cost alcohol, an Increase 
in fines for selling to underage drinkers, higher fees for late night licences, 
automatic revocation of  licences for non-payment of fees, a further increase in the 
notice required for TENS and a change in the evidential requirements for 
Cumulative Impact Policies, meaning that the presumption to grant would be 
reversed.  
 
RESOLVED THAT 
 

Page 4



(i) The presentation be noted, and; 
 
(ii) Officers be requested to submit appeals information in written format to 

future meetings.   
 
 

 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.07 pm 

 
 

Chairman   
 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Owen Rees 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Councillors Services 

 �: 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: owen.rees@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



 

 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

LICENSING 
COMMITTEE 
6 JULY 2011 

 
 

 

 
DATE 
 
6th July 2011 

TITLE 
 
ANNUAL LICENSING TEAM UPDATE 
 
SYNOPSIS 
 
This report  is to inform the Licensing Committee 
about the work of the Licensing Team over the 
last 15 months. It provides a summary of the 
Licensing Team’s performance for the financial 
year 2010/11, the Shepherds Bush Cumulative 
Impact Policy, other licensing issues and cases 
of interest. It has been submitted to provide an 
overview of the work of the Licensing Authority 
and to allow the Licensing Committee to 
recommend any improvements to the current 
way of working. 
 

Wards 
 
ALL 
 
 

CONTRIBUTORS   
 
Valerie Ellison  
Sanju Manji  
Lisa White 
Adrian Overton 
Lewis Aldous 
Owen Rees 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
It is recommended that the Committee note the 
report and make recommendations about any 
improvements to the current way of working. 
 

 

CONTACT 
 
Valerie Ellison x3905 
 

NEXT STEPS 
 
If adopted at Full Council on 29th June 2011, the 
Shepherds Bush Cumulative Impact Policy will 
be implemented. Any recommendations for 
improvement will be considered for inclusion in 
the Licensing Team’s work plan. 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 6



 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary update of the work and performance of the 

licensing team for the period between 1st April 2010 and 31st March 2011. Additional 
information has also been included in relation to current work activities and pending 
legislation changes. 

 
1.2 Staff changes following a mini reorganisation  in April 2011, has resulted in a more 

holistic and focussed approach to enforcement. This has been complemented by 
work to enhance existing and consider new licensing policies as part of the 
Licensing Authority’s role to promote the licensing objectives.  

 
1.3 The report highlights links with Public Health in relation to joined up partnership 

working through the Licensing Action Group to promote the responsible selling of 
alcohol, a new policy and framework to give greater control over sex establishments 
and the monitoring of drug use on licensed premises. 

 
1.4 An overview is provided of the work to improve payments of annual maintenance 

fees, enforcement action, committee hearing results, anticipated legislation changes 
and proposals for the training of new councillors in the future. 

 
2. INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 This report  is to inform the Licensing Committee about the work of the Licensing 

Team over the last 15 months.  
 
2.2 The licensing team covers a wide range of statutory licensing, registration and 

enforcement functions in the London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham. These 
functions cover gambling premises, sex establishments and premises which 
sell/supply alcohol, provide regulated entertainment or late night refreshment. 

 
2.3 The team work in partnership with others to promote the licensing objectives, 

improve public health and ensure that the Licensing Authority is fulfilling its 
functions, as efficiently as possible. 

 
3. REPORT 
 
3.1 Staffing 
 

As of the 1st April 2011, following a mini reorganisation within the Public Protection 
& Safety Division (PPS), the Licensing Team consists of 3 FTE Public Protection 
and Safety Officers (Licensing Officers) and the Trading Standards & Licensing 
Manager (0.5 FTE). The Special Events Public Protection & Safety Officer, who was 
in the Licensing Team under the previous PPS structure now sits within the 
Commercial Services Team. Appendix 1 shows the revised PPS FTE Structure 
chart. 
 
As a result of the reorganisation the following licensing, registration and 
enforcement functions are now managed by the Commercial Services Team: 

Page 7



 

 3 

Massage and Special Treatments, Explosives, Dangerous Wild Animals, Pet 
Shops, Animal Boarding Establishments and Riding Establishments. 

 
3.2 Team performance, work activity and key achievements in 2010/11 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 
The Authority has a statutory duty to carry out its function with a view to promoting 
the four licensing objectives. These are: 
 
� The prevention of crime and disorder; 
� Public safety; 
� The prevention of public nuisance; and 
� The protection of children from harm 
 
At the 1st April 2011, the authority had 966 licensed premises and had granted 1870 
authorisations for personal licence holders under the Licensing Act 2003. The table 
below illustrates the team performance during 2010/11. 

   
Licence/authorisation type No. of applications 

received 
No. of applications 

granted 
New premises licences applications 73 36 
New personal licences applications 168 151 
New premises licence variations 
applications 

50 19 
Designated premises supervisor 
variations applications 

198 146 
Transfers of premises licences 
applications 

73 45 
Temporary event notices 535 N/A 
 

The work of the Licensing Team involves policy, processing, inspection, 
enforcement and committee work, other team performance during 2010/11 is 
outlined in the table below: 

 
Licensing Work activity Total number 

Number of visits to businesses  508 
Number of complaints investigated 336 
Number of prosecution cases commenced 17 
Number of prosecution cases sent to Legal Services 4 
Number of completed prosecutions 7 
Number of simple cautions 2 
Number of letters of warning 75 
Number of Fixed Penalty Notices issued for illegal street trading 1 
Number of licensing sub committee hearings 25 
Number of review hearings 6 

 
Appendix 2 gives details of the licensing applications considered by the Licensing 
Sub-Committee and the decisions between June 2010 and May 2011. The total of 

Page 8



 

 4 

31 applications heard by the Sub-Committee represents an increase of 7 from the 
total of 24 in the previous year. It also details the applications where a date was set 
and a report published, but subsequently not used. There were 5 sub-committee 
hearings, including a review hearing, in April 2010 and none in May 2010. 

 
Gambling Act 2005 
 
The Authority has a statutory duty to carry out functions with a view to promoting 
the licensing objectives. These are: 
 
� Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder being associated 

with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; 
� Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
� Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited 

by gambling. 
 
The team issues premises licences for the following; bingo, betting, adult gaming 
centres, family entertainment centres, casino and horse racing and dog tracks.  

 
At the 1st April 2011, the authority had granted the following authorisations under 
the Gambling Act 2005. The table below illustrates the team performance during 
2010/11. 

 
Number of 

applications 
Type of applications 

2 Track Betting 
67 

Gaming Notifications (Machines in Licence 
Premises) 

8 Gaming Machines in Members Clubs 
11 Adult Gaming Centres 
47 Betting Shops 

 
 A summary of various cases of interest has been provided at Appendix 3. 
 
3.3 Statement of Licensing Policy 
 

In 2010/11, the Statement of Licensing Policy was reviewed for the second time 
since the Licensing Act 2003 came into force as part of the 3 yearly review required 
under the Act. Significant changes were made to the policy to reinforce how the four 
licensing objectives could be promoted. Additions included all mandatory 
conditions, a standard pool of conditions, details of the Fulham Broadway 
Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP) which was implemented in 2009/10 and additional 
information about crime and disorder. The revised Policy came into force in January 
2011 and is available on the council website. 

 
3.4 Public health: Sex Establishments 
 

The council currently licences three different types of sex establishments across the 
borough. They are tightly controlled either by the Licensing Act 2003 or the 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982. In 2010/11 the council consulted on and 

Page 9



 

 5 

adopted new legislation which brings lap/table dancing clubs under the same 
controls, which has resulted in the development of a new sex establishments policy 
and revised standard conditions, to ensure that sex establishments in the borough 
are adequately regulated. The new controls have been in effect since the 1st April 
2011, which is the first appointed day. Any new applications received within 6 
months of the first appointed day will all be considered together, in October 2011. 

 
3.5 Shepherd’s Bush Cumulative Impact Policy 
 

Following concerns raised by residents and the Police about the negative affect that 
the number and type of licensed premises in the Shepherds Bush area were having 
on the area, a cumulative impact study was commenced to establish whether a 
cumulative impact policy was required.  
 
In light of the evidence, a draft Special Licensing Policy was put forward for a formal 
12 week consultation, which concluded on 10th June 2011. The Full Council report 
gives details of the cumulative impact study that took place, the proposed area, 
results of surveys with licensed premises and residents, results of the 12 week 
consultation and evidence and monitoring data from the licensing team, an 
independent consultant, responsible authorities and the community safety division.  
 
If adopted by Full Council, on 29th June 2011, it will mean that applications for new 
premises licences or variations to existing premises licences e.g. later hours can be 
refused if a valid objection is received. A copy of the report prepared for the Full 
Council meeting on the 29th June 2011, is attached as Appendix 4. 

 
3.6 Public health: Licensing Action Group (LAG) 
 

In 2010/11 the Licensing Action Group (LAG) was inaugurated as a group of key 
partners who would agree to work together to tackle licensing issues. The group 
consists of officers from the licensing team, trading standards team, commercial 
services team, environment protection team, planning enforcement team, the 
police, the London Fire Brigade (LFB), Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) and 
the community safety division.  
 
Since the formation of the LAG, a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has been 
signed by all partners to agree a protocol of working together more effectively. 
Members of the group recognise the potential negative affects that the irresponsible 
sales of alcohol can have on public health and to the night time economy. The 
LAG’s Terms of Reference can be seen at Appendix 5. 

 
3.7 Public health: Monitoring drug use on licensed premises 
 

The issue of drug use by customers is proactively discussed at Pubwatch meetings 
with a clear message that doing nothing will not be tolerated. Members of Pubwatch  
and other licensed premises visited have been offered free wipes to carry out their 
own monitoring and have been advised about the various steps that can be taken to 
combat drug use on their premises.  

 

Page 10



 

 6 

In 2010/11 a drug inspection notice was devised in conjunction with DAAT that can 
be issued at the time of inspection, prompts licensees to take proactive action to 
resolve any issues and can be used for immediate referrals to the police and DAAT. 

 
3.8 Annual maintenance fees 
 

The licensing team have recently changed the way that they focus on outstanding 
debts for annual maintenance fees. Licensing Officers are proactively visiting 
premises which have unpaid annual maintenance fees outstanding, to minimise the 
number of premises referred for debt recovery.  
 
When visiting debtors, officers have identified other non-compliant licensing issues, 
e.g. that the premises licence holder has left, the Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS) has left, the licence has lapsed due to company insolvency, licence 
conditions have been breached or that the premises has closed down. This has 
allowed officers to take the necessary action to update the licensing database, bring 
the premises into compliance or to take formal action, as appropriate. Mix Food and 
Wine, 299 North End Road, W14, who are currently being investigated for over ten 
offences, is an example of a licensed premises which came to the Licensing Team's 
attention through the non-payment of their annual maintenance fee. 

 
4.  LEGISLATION CHANGES 
 
4.1 Rebalancing the Licensing Act 
 
 In 2010 the Government launched a consultation entitled “Rebalancing the 

Licensing Act”. The consultation proposed many changes that the Government 
wished to make to the Act and invited responses from Local Authorities, 
Responsible Authorities and those in the licensed trade. A number of the proposals 
have now been incorporated into the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Bill, 
which if passed will amend the Licensing Act in significant ways.  
 
The legislation has currently passed readings in the House of Commons and is 
currently being read in the House of Lords where amendments may be made. It is 
likely that the majority of changes will come into effect in 2012. 
 
Appendix 6 gives details of the Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2003 proposed 
changes which cover the following issues: 
 
� Changes to the Application Process 
� Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) 
� Health Authorities 
� Licensing Authorities as Responsible Authorities 
� Licensing Fees 
� Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 
� Underage Sales 

 
It is important to note that none of these proposals have yet become law. The Bill is 
currently being read in the House of Lords and many of the changes which may 
require secondary legislation are not expected to become law until next year at the 

Page 11



 

 7 

earliest. It may also be the case that further changes are made and that only some 
amendments are passed. However, it is also important to note that some of these 
amendments may impact upon the Licensing Committee e.g. more committee 
meetings due to more people being able to make representations.  

 
4.2 Councillor training 
 

The Licensing Authority is a member of the Institute of Licensing (IoL) which 
regularly offers cost effective training including the Licensing Hearings for All 
training course, which has been identified as a value for money one day course for 
new members of the Licensing Committee. 
 
Whist the Licensing Team continue to provide training to new councillors and 
refresher training, as required, to allow them to fulfil their obligations as a member 
of the Licensing Committee, it is recognised that the current training delivery 
method is more effective and efficient in a group forum as opposed to a one to one 
training session. 
 
It is proposed that new members of the Licensing Committee will be issued with a 
training pack, containing guidance on their role, and a copy of the Section 182 
Guidance and the Statement of Licensing Policy. This will be supplemented by with 
training notes in the form of a Powerpoint presentation, and a 1-2 hour session with 
a member of the Licensing Team to discuss and clarify any issues. In addition, they 
will be given the opportunity to attend the IoL Licensing Hearings for All training 
course. The team would also look to offer the training, as part of the Council’s 
package of e-learning courses in the future. 
 

 
5. CONCLUSION  
 

Officers will continue to work in partnership with all statutory agencies to develop 
new procedures and enforcement policies to facilitate the effective operation of new 
and existing legislation and to promote the selling of alcohol responsibly. 

 
 

List of Appendices 
 
Appendix 
Number 

Description 
Appendix 1 PPS FTE Structure 1st April 2011 
Appendix 2 Licensing applications considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee and the 

decisions taken between June 2010 and May 2011 
Appendix 3 Cases of interest 
Appendix 4 Full Council Report for Full Council meeting on the 29th June 2011 relating to 

a proposed Shepherds Bush Cumulative Impact Policy 
Appendix 5 LAG Terms of Reference 
Appendix 6 Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2003 proposed changes 

 

Page 12



 

 8 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 

No. 
 

 
Description of Background Papers 

 
Name/Ext  of 
holder of file/copy 

 

 
Department/ 

Location 
1. LAG Memorandum of Understanding Sanju Manji, Ext: 

3392  
ENV/PPS – 6th Floor 
HTHX 

2.  Revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy 2011 

Sanju Manji, Ext: 
3392  

ENV/PPS – 6th Floor 
HTHX 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 D

ire
ct

or
 P

P
S

 

H
ea

d 
of

 R
es

id
en

tia
l 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
  

H
ea

d 
of

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

  

��
���
��
�
��

	

��

�
�	
��
	��
��

�

�

�
��
��

��
���
��
�
��

	

��

�
�

��	�

�
�

�

�
��
��

�
�	
�

�
��
	��

��
�

�

�
��
��

��

�
��
��
�	

�
�


��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��

�

�

�
��
��

�
��

�
��
��


��
��

��
���

��
�

�

�
��
��

��
�

��
���
�
�	
��
	��
��

��
�


��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

�
��


	�
��
��

���
��
��

�
�

�	 
��

�

�
��
�

!�
��
	 
"��

��
	�


	�
��
��

#
��
��
�$
�
��
	��

�
��


	�
�

�
��
���

��
��

�
�

�	 
�

�

�

�
��
�

!%
��
	 
"��

 

��
�

��
���
�
�	
��
	��
��

��
�


��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

 

&�
�

��
���

�
�	
��
	��
��
��

�

��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

'�
��

��
(�

���
	

�	
��

)�
�

��
���

�
�	
��
	��
��
��

�

��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

8�
�

��
���

�
�	
��
	��
��
��

�

��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

 

��
��
��
��
��

� '�
�

��
���

�
�	
��
	��
��
��

�

��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

�

��

�
��
��
�	

�
�


��
��

� +�
�

��
���
�
�	
��
	��
��
��

�

��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

 

)�
��

�$
��

	
��
�
�

�	 
�

��
�


��
	�
��
���
��
��
�

)�
�

�	
��
��
	��

��
�
���
��
��
��

 

��

�

��
�

��
��

�
��
$�

�

	�
��
�


�	 
��
�

�

��
	�
�

 

P
P

S
  F

T
E

 S
tr

u
ct

u
re

 
  1

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
1 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
   

H
ea

d 
of

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

up
po

rt
  

(s
ee

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 S

up
po

rt 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
ha

rt
) 

Page 14



Date of Hearing Premises Postcode Type of Application Ward Decision Description
7th June 2010 La Reserve, 422-428 Fulham 

Road, London, SW6 1DU 
(2010/00484/LAPR)

SW6 Review Parsons Green 
and Walham

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a review of the premises 
licence, brought by the Police. It agreed the addition of conditions to the 
licence as requested by the police. 

7th June 2010 Personal Licence Personal Licence 
application

N/A Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a personal licence which 
had received a Police objection. The Sub-Committee refused the 
application. 

14th June 2010 Sri Sai Convenience Store, 94 
Hammersmith Bridge Road, 
London W6 9DB (Application 
No 2010/00553/LAPR)

W6 New Premises 
Licence 

Hammersmith 
Broadway

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises), which was 
agreed subject to the addition of conditions, and a reduction in hours 
applied for. 

21st June 2010 Putney Bridge News, 7 Putney 
Bridge Approach, SW6 3JD 
(2010/00700/LAPR)

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Palace 
Riverside

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises), which was 
agreed subject to the addition of conditions, and a reduction in hours 
applied for. 

6th July 2010 The Basement, 115-117 
Uxbridge Road, London, W12 
8NL (2010/00679/LAPRR)

W12 Review Shepherds 
Bush Green

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a review of the club 
premises certifate brought by the Police. It agreed the revokation of the 
licence as requested by the Police. 

4th August 2010 The Knaypa, 268 King Street, 
London, W6 0SA (Application 
Number: 2010/00847/LAPR)

W6 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Ravenscourt 
Park

Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the addition of further activites to the 
licence (live music and dancing). The Sub-Committee refused the 
application. 

23rd August 2010 Golden Bowl, 26 Shepherds 
Bush Road, W6 7PJ

W6 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Addison Agree The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, seeking the addition of further activites to the licence 
(sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises). The Sub-Committee 
agreed the application, subject to the addition of conditions and a 
reduction in the hours applied for. 

23rd August 2010 Cafe Amor, 76 Shepherds Bush 
Road, London, W6 7PH

W6 New Premises 
Licence 

Ravenscourt 
Park

Refuse The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence, 
for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises, and for the 
playing of recorded music. The Sub-Committee refused the application

3rd September 2010Personal Licence Personal Licence 
application

N/A Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a personal licence which 
had received a Police objection. The Sub-Committee refused the 
application. 

3rd September 2010Sainsbury's, 167-181 Askew 
Road, London, W12 9AX 
(Application Number: 
2010/00993/LAPR)

W12 New Premises 
Licence 

Addison Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises), which was 
agreed subject to the addition of conditions, and a reduction in hours 
applied for. 

P
age 15



7th September 2010Village Fayre, Kensington 
Village, Avonmore Road, W14 
8TS (Application Number: 
2019/00914/LAPR)

W14 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Avonmore and 
Brook Green

Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the extension of hours for licensable 
activities, including the sale of alcohol. The Sub-Committee refused the 
application. 

13th September 2010Sainsbury's, 917-921 Fulham 
Road, London, SW6 5HU 
(Application Number: 
2010/01074/LAPR)

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Town Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption of the premises), which was 
agreed subject to the addition of conditions, and a reduction in hours 
applied for. 

22nd September 2010Harper Collins, Horatio House 
and Ophelia House, 77 Fulham 
Palace Road, London, W6 8JA 
(Application 
Number:2010/01078/LAPR)

W6 New Premises 
Licence 

Hammersmith 
Broadway

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for live music and performance and the sale of alcohol for consumption 
on the premises), which was agreed subject to the addition of conditions, 
and a reduction in hours applied for. 

22nd September 2010The Ruby Grand, 225-227 King 
Street, London, W6 9TF 
(Application 
Number:2010/01137/LAPR)

W6 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Ravenscourt 
Park

Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the extension of hours for licensable 
activities, including the sale of alcohol, and the addition of licensable 
activities, including regulated entertainment. The Sub-Committee refused 
the application. 

4th October 2010 Olympia Exhibition Centre, 
Hammersmith Road, London, 
W14 8UX (Application Number: 
2010/00747/SXO)

W14 New Premises 
Licence 

Avonmore and 
Brook Green

Agree The Sub-Committee considered an application for a sex establishment 
licence under Schedule 3 of the Local Government (miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982, as amended, and for a temporary variation of 
Condition 3A, to the Exhibition Licence rules of magement, permitting 
entertainment involving nudity under the Greater London Council 
(General Powers) Act 1966.  The Sub-Committee agree the application.

7th October 2010 The Raven, 375 Goldhawk 
Road, London, W6 0SA 
(Application 
Number:2010/01179/LAPRR)

W6 Review Ravenscourt 
Park

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a review of the premises 
licence, brought by the Council's Environmental Protection Service. It 
agreed to the reduction in the terminal hour for the licence as requested. 

18th October 2010 Cafe Monte, 228 Munster 
Road, London, SW6 6A2 
(Application Number: 
2010/01228/LAPR)

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Munster Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence, 
which was agreed subject to the addition of conditions to the licence.

18th October 2010 The Prince, 77 Goldhawk 
Road, London W12 8EG 
(Application Number: 
2010/01234/LAPR)

W12 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Hammersmith 
Broadway

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence for the provision of facilities for dancing, and for a 
change of plans. The Sub-Committee agreed the application, subject to 
the addition of conditions

P
age 16



25th October 2010 Blues Food and Wine, 513 
Fulham Road, London, SW6 
1HH

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Parsons Green 
and Walham

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises), which was 
agreed subject to the addition of conditions, and a reduction in hours 
applied for. 

23rd November 2010Furnivall Gardens, Lower Mall, 
London W6 9DJ (Application 
Number:)

W6 New Premises 
Licence 

Hammersmith 
Broadway

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence, 
which was agreed subject to the addition of conditions.

29th November 2010Fulham Grill, 647 Fulham 
Road, London, SW6 5PU 
(Application Number: 
2010/01398/LAPR)

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Town Refuse The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(Provision of Late Night Refreshement), which was refused.

17th January 2011 Nisa Local, 88-90 Askew Road, 
W12 9BJ (Application 
Number:2010/01662/LAPR)

W12 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Askew Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the extension of hours for the sale of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises. The Sub-Committee refused 
the application. 

24th January 2011 Costcutter, 51 Fulham 
Broadway, London SW6 1AE 
(Application 
Number:2010/01534/LAPR)

SW6 New Premises 
Licence 

Fulham 
Broadway

Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a new premises licence (for 
the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises). The Sub-
Committee refused the application.

24th January 2011 Sainsbury's, 3 North End 
Cresent, London, W14 8TG 
(Application 
Number:2010/01708/LAPR)

W14 New Premises 
Licence 

Avonmore and 
Brook Green

Agree The Sub-Committee heard an application for a new premises licence (for 
the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises). The Sub-
Committee granted the application, subject to an additional condition 
regarding the provision of litterbins.

7th March 2011 Londis, 20 Goldhawk Road, 
W12 8DH (Application Number: 
2011/00104/LAPR)

W12 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Shepherds 
Bush Green

Refuse The Sub-Committee heard an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the extension of hours for the sale of 
alcohol off the premises. The Sub-Committee refused the application. 

30th March 2011 Your Best One, 96 North End 
Road, London, W14 9EX 
(Application Number: 
2011/00179/LAPR)

W14 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

North End Refuse The Sub-Committee received an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence, which sought the extension of hours for the sale of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises. The Sub-Committee refused 
the application.

1st April 2011 Butti Supermarket, 67 Dalling 
Road, London, W6 0JD 
(Application Number: 
2011/00189/LAPRR)

W6 Review Ravenscourt 
Park

Agree The Sub-Committee received an application for a review of the premises 
licence, brought by the Police, following customs offences committed by 
the Premises. The Sub-Committee agreed to revoke the premises 
licence.

14th April 2011 The Morrison, 648 Kings Road, 
SW6 2DU (Application 
Number:2011/00574/LAPRR)

SW6 Review Parsons Green 
and Walham

Agree The Sub-Committee reviewed the premises licence, following the 
Police's service of a closure order. The Sub-Committee agreed to revoke 
the premises licence.

P
age 17



18th April 2011 Ole Mexico, 297 North End 
Road, W14 9NS (Application 
Number: 2011/00304/LAPR)

W14 New Premises 
Licence 

North End Refuse The Sub-Committee received an application for a new premises licence 
(for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises and the 
provision of late night refreshment). The Sub-Committee refused the 
application.

9th May 2011 Supersave, 94 North End 
Road, London, W14 9EX 
(Application Number: 
2011/00328/LAPRR)

W14 Review North End Agree The Sub-Committee reviewed the premises licence, following the 
Police's service of a closure order. The Sub-Committee agreed to revoke 
the premises licence.

20th May 2011 Barbarella, 422-428 Fulham 
Road, London, SW6 1DU 
(Application 
Number:2011/00446/LAPR)

SW6 Variation to an 
existing premises 
licence

Parsons Green 
and Walham

Refuse The Sub-Committee received an application for a variation to an existing 
premises licence (allowing the sale of alcohol without the purchase of 
food). The Sub-Committee refused the application.

Hearings By Postcode
SW6 9
W14 6
W6 9
W12 5
Personal Licence 2

By Result
Hearings Total Agreed Refuse
Review 6 6
New Premises Licence 14 10 4
Variation 9 2 7
Personal Licence 2 0
Total 31 18 11

P
age 18



Withdrawals (Scheduled for hearing and not heard)Date Scheduled Withdrawn By
The Norman Arms, 197 Lillie 
Road, SW6 7LR 
(2010/00698/LADPSV)

7th June 2010 Applicant

Vagabond Wines, 18-21 Vanston 
Place, London, SW6 1AX 
(2010/00693/LAPR)

21st June 2010 Representations 
withdrawn

Personal Application 16th August 2010 Postponed at applicant's 
behest; heard on the 3rd 
September 2010

Prime Food Ltd, 11 Bank 
Buildings, Fulham Broadway, 
London, SW6 1ER (Application 
Number: 2010/01215/LAPR)

21st October 2011 Applicant

Prime Food Ltd, 51 Fulham 
Broadway, London, SW6 1AE 
(Application Number: 
2010/01227/LAPR)

21st October 2010 Applicant

Real China Express, Queen 
Caroline Street, W6 9BW 
(Application Number: 
2011/00290/LAPR)

18th April 2011 Representations 
withdrawn

The Morrison Public House,  648 
King's Road, London, SW6 2DU 
(Application Number: 
2011/00619/LAPR)

20th May 2011 Postponed at applicant's 
behest

The Morrison Public House,  648 
King's Road, London, SW6 2DU 
(Application Number: 
2011/00619/LAPR)

20th May 2011 Postponed at applicant's 
behest

Seven Hills Superstore, 30 Parsons 
Green Lane, London, SW6 4HS 
(Application 
Number:2011/00524/LAPR)

20th May 2011 Applicant

Page 19



Page 1 of 4 

Appendix 3 - Cases of interest 
 
BOROUGH WIDE 
 
Agora adult gaming centres – Transfer of licence 
 
All of the Agora gaming centres across the country were sold to new owners in December 
2010. The gambling premises licences for all of these sites were subsequently transferred 
into the name of Minmar Ltd to reflect the new ownership. 
 
Whilst being named as the licence holder for individual premises Minmar Ltd were also 
required to obtain an operators licence from the Gambling Commission. On the 1st March 
2011 the Gambling Commission, as part of a review procedure, suspended Minmar's 
operating licence. This meant that gambling facilities could no longer be offered at any of 
their stores until their operating licence was reinstated or the licences were transferred to a 
company who did have a valid operating licence. 
 
Transfer applications were submitted to this authority and other authorities across the 
country asking for the licence for each store to changed into the name of Cashino.  
 
Consent was received from Minmar, for all of these transfers, on the 17th March 2011. 
This consent came from administrators acting on their behalf and allowed the transfer of all 
of the premises licences at the ex Agora venues into the name of Cashino Gaming Ltd, 
however this consent was under dispute.  
 
Other London local authorities with Agora premises advised that they were not accepting 
the consent until the solicitors for the new and existing owners agreed that it was valid.  
 
On the 8th April a new consent form from one of the directors of Minmar was provided, the 
transfers were processed and new licences issued in the name of Cashino Ltd for all 
Agora premises in the borough.  
 
FULHAM 
 
Mandaloun Restaurant, 496 Fulham Road, Fulham, SW6 – Prosecution case 
 
A case against the licensing holders for contraventions under the Licensing Act 2003 was 
heard by District Judge Jones on the 12th October 2010.  The licence holders failed to 
attend Court, therefore the case was proved against both Mr William Barakat and Mr 
Barakat Barakat Diab in their absence. 
 
The Judge was satisfied that all 6 identical offences against both Mr William Barakat and 
Mr Barakat Barakat Diab were duly proved.  The Judge, in fining the Defendants, stated 
that these were serious offences.  The Judge concluded that the defendants had been 
warned before but this was ignored by them and they behaved in an intentional matter.  
The Judge noted the harm that can be caused as a result of abuse of alcohol by members 
of the public late at night.   
 
For the 5 offences under Section 136, Mr William Barakat and Mr Barakat Barakat Diab 
were fined £1,000.00 each. They were fined £250.00 for the Section 141 offence and 
ordered to pay costs in the sum of £960.00.  A £15.00 Victims Surcharge was also 
imposed. In total they were ordered to pay £6,225.00 each. 

Page 20



Page 2 of 4 

 
The Morrison, 648 King’s Road, SW6 – Revocation of licence  
 
In February/March 2010 the premises had 4 substantiated noise complaints made against 
them. In addition, the premises were witnessed, trading after their permitted hours, by the 
Police and officers from the Licensing Team. Further inspections revealed that several 
conditions attached to their licence were continuously being breached. These conditions 
related to door staff, noise and the dispensing of alcohol directly into customers’ mouths 
(mandatory condition).  As a result of these breaches a Section 19 closure order was 
issued by the Licensing Team. 
 
Upon speaking with the licensee (Greene King) officers were informed that they had sold 
the premises and signed a transfer consent form. However no transfer application had 
been received by the Licensing Authority and the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 
could not be contacted. On the basis of these serious breaches, no confidence in 
management and the potential for disorder at the Chelsea v Manchester United football 
match, on the 6th April 2011, the Police issued a closure order under Section 161 of the 
Licensing Act. As required by a Section 161 closure order, the Police and an officer from 
the Licensing Team attended the Magistrates Court on 7th April 2011. Judge Williams ruled 
that the closure order was necessary and that the premises should remain closed until the 
Licensing Authority could review the premises licence. Reviews under Section 161 are not 
subject to the normal 28 day consultation period and must be heard within 10 working 
days.  
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee heard the review on 14th April 2011 and unanimously 
decided to revoke the licence based on the evidence submitted by the Licensing Team, 
the Police and officers from the Environmental Protection team. 
 
HAMMERSMITH 
 
The Raven, 375 Goldhawk Road, W6 – Review of premises licence 
 
In August 2010, following a large number of complaints received by the Environmental 
Protection team and various breaches of the premises licence, the licence was called in for 
review. A wide range of representations were received from residents during the 
consultation period and the Licensing Sub-Committee heard the review application in 
October 2010. The sub-committee decided to reduce the hours for licensable activities and 
attach a number of conditions intended to reduce public nuisance. In January 2011 the 
DPS left the premises and was replaced.  
 
In the period leading up to the review (July 2010 – October 2010) in excess of 30 
complaints were received from local residents regarding the premises. Following the 
committee’s decision to restrict the licence just 3 complaints have been received to date 
and no further breaches of licence conditions have been discovered. The premises also 
failed to a child volunteer during a Trading Standards underage test purchase operation. 
 
Mix Food & Wine, 299 North End Road, W14 - Investigation 
 
This premises has been subject to extensive joint enforcement action from the Licensing 
Team and Trading Standards. In under a year the premises has failed 3 after hours test 
purchases, 1 underage test purchase and has had large quantities of alcohol seized 
because they were counterfeit. The case is ongoing.  

Page 21



Page 3 of 4 

Butti Supermarket (Booty Wines), 67 Dalling Road, W6 - Revocation of licence 
 
In 2010, two separate operations were carried out by HMRC and the Police. On both 
occasions the premises were found to be selling counterfeit alcohol and alcohol where UK 
duty had not been paid. Based on this, the police decided to call the premises in for 
review. After hearing the review in April 2011, the sub-committee decided to revoke the 
licence. The licensees have now appealed this decision in the Magistrates Court and a 
hearing date has been set for August 2011.  
 
Supersave, 94 North End Road, W14 - Revocation of licence 
 
The Premises recently failed 2 separate test purchases conducted by Police and Licensing 
for after hour’s sales. In addition, conditions attached to the licence were breached and 
serious doubts were raised about the capabilities of the current licensee and DPS. Police 
decided to call the licence in for review requesting total revocation of the licence. The sub-
committee heard the application in May 2011 and decided to revoke the premises licence. 
The licensees have now appealed this decision and a hearing date has been set for 27th 
July 2011. 
 
SHEPHERD’S BUSH 
 
Sainsbury's, 167-181 Askew Road - Appeal  
 
An application was made on the 8th July 2010 to vary the hours for the sale of alcohol at 
this premises to allow early morning sales to start at 6am, as opposed to the 11am start 
already permitted by the licence. This application was objected to by the Police because of 
a history of street drinking problems in the area. At a hearing on the 3rd September 2010 a 
licensing sub committee refused the licence on the basis of the Police evidence. In light of 
this decision the applicant appealed the decision and a hearing date was set for the 
Magistrates Court on the 2nd February 2011. On the 13th January 2011, following further 
discussion between the Licensing Authority and the applicant it was agreed that alcohol 
sales could commence at 9am and a licence was granted with a number of conditions 
attached to restrict the sale of alcohol to street drinkers.  
 
Tesco, 93 Askew Road, W12 - Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 
 
The premises made a new application for the off sale of alcohol from 6am until 11pm every 
day of the week. In light of problems with street drinking in the area the application was 
objected to by the Police due to the early start time for the sale of alcohol. During 
enforcement visits in Askew Road whilst the application was out to consultation the 
premises was found not to be displaying it's application notice correctly. As a result the last 
day of objection was extended until the notice was satisfactorily displayed. 
 
In the interim period before a new premises licence was granted several Temporary Event 
Notifications (TENs) were also received to licence the venue for the sale of alcohol. The 
Licensing Act stipulates that there must be a 24 hour gap between each TEN notification 
on a particular premise. After further discussions new TENs were resubmitted with the 
required 24 hour break. A hearing was set for this application on the 31st May 2011. 
Before the hearing took place Tesco agreed to amend the hours for the sale of alcohol to 
9am until 11pm - Monday to Sunday to take into account the Police representation. In light 
of this amendment a licence was granted by the licensing sub committee. 
 

Page 22



Page 4 of 4 

Nisa Local, 88-90 Askew Road - Appeal 
 
The premises applied to vary their licence on the 23rd November 2010 to allow the 24 
hour sale of alcohol. Objections were received from 20 local residents, the Police and 
Environmental Protection. The application was subsequently refused by a licensing 
committee and then appealed by the applicant. 
 
The appeal hearing took place at the Magistrates Court on the 25th May 2011 and a 
further day was required on the 10th June 2011. Evidence was given by Environmental 
Protection and Police Officers in relation to nuisance and street drinking problems in the 
area. The residents’ statements were agreed by the appellant therefore there was no need 
for any residents to give evidence on the day. Before summing up and whilst questioning 
the appellant's barrister the judge made it clear that she would look to give weight to the 
Council's Statement of Licensing policy which specifically mentioned restricting hours for 
the sale of alcohol where there was evidence of street drinking. In summing up she 
advised that although it was clear that street drinking problems in and around the Askew 
Road had improved in recent years there was still an underlying problem. In light of the 
evidence from various responsible authorities and the local residents the appeal was 
dismissed.  
 
 
 

Page 23



 

 

Report to 
Council 

 
29th June 2011 

        

 

LEADER  
Councillor Stephen 
Greenhalgh 
 
Cabinet Member for 
Resident Services 
Councillor Greg Smith 
 

TITLE    Shepherd’s Bush Area – Adoption of a 
Special Licensing Policy  
  
SUMMARY 
 
A cumulative impact study carried out in the 
Shepherd’s Bush area has indicated that the area is 
suffering stress due to the concentration of licensed 
premises adversely affecting the objectives under 
the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
A draft special licensing policy for the Shepherd’s 
Bush area has been developed and been consulted 
upon.   
 
This report considers the need for adoption of a 
special licensing policy and the results of the 
consultation carried out. 

Wards 
Addison 
 
Shepherd’s 
Bush Green 
 
Askew 
 
Hammersmith 
Broadway 
 
Ravenscourt 
 
Wormholt and 
White City 
 

CONTRIBUTORS 
 
Environmental 
Services 
 
Legal and Democratic 
Services 
 
Financial and 
Corporate Services 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Council is asked to : 
 

1. Approve and adopt the draft special 
licensing policy for the proposed area in 
Shepherd’s Bush, at Appendix A to this 
report. 

2. If adopted, agree that the draft special 
licensing policy  be incorporated into the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
2011. 

 

 

 
 

Page 24



 

 1

1. BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 In October 2010 as a result of concern over problems with crime and disorder and 

public nuisance, a project was initiated to establish if the Shepherd’s Bush area was 
suffering stress as a result of the cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed 
premises. The project objectives were to assess the level of evidence in favour of or 
against the creation and adoption of a special licensing policy. 

 
1.2 "Cumulative impact" is not mentioned specifically in the Licensing Act 2003 

(LA2003).  It is however mentioned in the guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182. It is defined as the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in 
one area. 

 
1.3 Fulham Town Centre was previously identified as an area where the number, type 

and density of premises providing licensable activities after 11pm was having a 
serious negative impact on the local community and local amenities.  For this reason 
a special licensing policy was consulted on and adopted in that area in January 
2010.  

 
1.4 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011 outlines ‘Cumulative Impact’ 

under section 6 and states “Where there is sufficient evidence that another particular 
area has reached a point where existing licensing activity is at such levels that if by 
granting a licence, it would contribute to the negative impact in the area, the council 
may adopt a further special licensing policy in relation to that area.” 

 
1.5 Section 13.29 of the Secretary of State’s guidance states the following: ‘The effect of 

adopting a special licensing policy of this kind is to create a rebuttable presumption 
that applications for new premises licences or club premises certificates or variations 
that are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, 
following relevant representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in their 
operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more 
of the licensing objectives. However, a special licensing policy must stress that this 
presumption does not relieve responsible authorities or interested parties of the 
need to make a relevant representation. 

 
1.6 Whilst special licensing policies have usually been adopted to address the impact of 

a concentration of licensed premises selling alcohol for consumption on the 
premises, statutory guidance does not prohibit the adoption of a special licensing 
policy on the basis of a concentration of all licensed premises from being included. 
Several authorities have successfully introduced cumulative impact policies that 
include both on and off licences and premises that sell late night refreshments.  

 
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 Introduction 
  

2.1.1 The Borough has over 900 premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003; 
with 140 currently in the boundaries of the proposed cumulative impact area 
within Shepherd’s Bush.  This figure includes all premises such as pubs, 
restaurants, nightclubs, off-licences, late night refreshment venues (those selling 
hot food and drink after 11pm), cinemas and hotels.   

 

Page 25



 

 2

The table below provides further details of the percentage ratio of different types of 
licensed premises in the proposed area: 
 

Premises Type 
Number 
of 

premises 
% of 

premises 
Off licences 40 29% 

Clubs/bars/pubs 31 22% 
Restaurants 29 21% 

Late night refreshments venues 19 13% 
Supermarkets 12 9% 

Other 9 6% 
Total 140 100% 

 
2.1.2 The types of activities authorised under the premises licences within the proposed 

area can be seen in the following table. Some premises are authorised to carry out 
more than one type of licensable activity.  From the 140 licensed premises, 119 of 
those sell alcohol, and 57 provide late night refreshments. 

 
Licensable Activities Number of Premises authorised 
Late night refreshment 57 
Alcohol off supply only 53 
Alcohol on and off sales 36 
Alcohol on supply only 30 

 
2.1.3 The tables below details the closing times and the terminal hours for alcohol sales 

in the proposed area.  Over 50% of the premises close between 11pm and 1am and 
over 30% close between 1am and 4am.  

 
2.1.4 119 premises are permitted to sell alcohol, of which over 70% have a licence to sell 

alcohol between the hours of 11pm and 1am with a further 27% permitted to sell 
alcohol between 1am and 4am, with 2 premises having 24 hours licences. 

 
Premises Closing Times Number of 

premises  % o 

Before 7pm 7 5% 
Between 7pm to 8pm 0 0% 
Between 8pm to 9pm 1 1% 
Between 9pm to 10pm 2 1% 
Between 10pm to 11pm 6 4% 
Between 11pm to 12am 43 31% 
Between 12am to 1am 30 21% 
Between 1am to 2am 19 14% 
Between 2am to 3am 18 13% 
Between 3am to 4am 5 4% 
Between 24 Hours 9 6% 

Total 140 100% 
 

Page 26



 

 3

2.2 Research, Monitoring and Consultation Process  
 
2.2.1 A responsible authority working group was established in October 2010 with 

representatives from Environmental Health, Metropolitan Police, Planning, Fire 
Service, Trading Standards, Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT), Community 
Safety, and Licensing.  Data in relation to, crime and disorder issues, anti social 
behaviour, service requests (noise complaints relating to licensed premises) 
licensing statistics, and hospital admissions was provided by the group members for 
analysis to determine the level of the cumulative effect on the Shepherd’s Bush 
area.  In addition, data was obtained from the Performance and Information Team 
in relation to crime and disorder issues in the Shepherd’s Bush area. 

 
2.2.2 The geographical boundary of the proposed special licensing policy was agreed by 

the working group and based upon historic complaint mapping and intelligence from 
the Metropolitan Police and Responsible Authorities. The area covered by the 
proposed special licensing policy can be seen at Appendix A.  

 
2.2.3 A survey was sent to all existing premises licence holders in the Shepherd’s Bush 

and surrounding areas to seek their views on the potential effects that a special 
licensing policy would have.  

 
2.2.4 A further wider survey was then conducted with residents, resident associations, and 

businesses in the proposed and surrounding areas to seek their views on the impact 
that licensed premises and the night time economy was having and to receive 
feedback about the perception and possible impact of the proposed special licensing 
policy for the proposed area in Shepherd’s Bush. 

 
2.2.5 Following the results of the surveys and statistical data provided, observational 

studies of the night time economy were undertaken by officers and an independent 
specialist to monitor the activities and anti social behaviour taking place. 

 
2.2.6 In light of the evidence, a draft Special Licensing Policy was sent out for a formal 12 

week consultation.  The proposed policy can be seen at Appendix A.  The 
consultation was undertaken with;  

 
• Residents, businesses and Councillors; 
• Responsible Authorities: Police, Fire Authority, Environment Protection Team, 

Commercial Services Team, Trading Standards Team, Planning Team, and the 
Area Child Protection Committee; 

• Trade Associations; 
• Resident groups, tenants associations and societies;  
• Health service including PCT, Accident and Emergency and the London 

Ambulance service; 
• Transport for London; 
• Neighbouring authorities;  
• Drug and alcohol action team; and 
• Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership. 

 
2.3 Summary of Key Responses 
 
The complete analysis of the responses can be seen in the Shepherd’s Bush Cumulative 
Impact Study which is listed as a background document. 
 

Page 27



 

 4

2.3.1 Initial survey of the Licensed Trade 
 
The consultation took place between the 23rd November 2010 and the 7th December 2010.  
In total 427 letters were sent out and 7 responses were received. 
 
There was a concern from some licensed premises who already had extended hours that 
the policy would force them to decrease their hours.   
 
Respondents overall felt that the proposed area was reasonable, however one respondent 
felt it would simply displace/shift the issues to other parts of the Borough.   
 
A few respondents suggested that the Licensing Authority should use other powers under 
the Licensing Act 2003 to deal with those licensed premises who failed to meet the four 
licensing objectives and call for further reviews.   
 
Generally respondents felt that the policy was necessary and would result in a positive 
outcome. 
 
2.3.2 Wider survey of Residents and Businesses 
 
In total over 8,000 questionnaires were sent out in the post and it was also made available 
on the internet.  The consultation took place between the 7th December 2010 and the 11th 
February 2011. 
 
The service received a total of 584 completed questionnaires of which 531 (91%) of the 
responses were from local residents and 53 (9%) from businesses and other organisations 
in the following wards : 
 

Ward Number of respondents 
Wormholt and White City 3 (1%) 
Addison  5 (1%) 
Hammersmith Broadway 5 (1%) 
Ravenscourt Park  11 (2%) 
Others 40 (7%) 
Shepherd’s Bush Green 153 (26%) 
Don't Know 155 (26%) 
Askew 212 (36%) 

 
257 (44%) lived 0-50 metres, and 113 (19%) lived 51-200 metres from the closest licensed 
premises. Only 44 (4%) of the consultees lived beyond 200 metres from the closest 
licensed premises.   
 
241 (41%) of the consultees visited licensed premises on a weekly/monthly basis with 106 
(18%) visiting these premises twice weekly. 
 
279 (48%) of the consultees reported seeing littering everyday, and 170 (29%) reported 
seeing fighting less often.   
183 (31%)of consultees reported they had difficulties sleeping as a result of these activities 
and 122 (21%) have been woken weekly/twice weekly as a result of these activities. 
 
221 (38%) consultees felt that there were too many licensed premises within the vicinity of 
their home or business. 

Page 28



 

 5

 
Overall 329 (56%) consultees supported the policy with 132 (23%) being unsure and 123 
(21%) of the consultees were against the policy. 280 (48%) of the consultees agreed with 
the boundaries, and 49 (8%) of the consultees did not agree.  Of those 49 who said they 
did not agree with the boundaries, 42 (86%) commented that the boundaries should be 
extended. 
 
Consultees were asked which types of licensed premises they thought should be covered if 
a policy was proposed.  The results can be seen on the table below which shows that 
Pubs, Night Clubs, Bars, and Off Licences were the most popular selections: 
 

Number of people Licensed Premises Type 
269 Pubs 
256 Night Clubs 
254 Bars 
241 Off Licences 
230 Late Night Refreshments Houses 
162 Social Clubs 
85 Restaurants 

 
132 (23%) of the consultees stated that they were not sure whether there should be a 
special licensing policy in the area based on their experiences, but of these 26 (20%) 
consultees stated that they have had problems sleeping and 52 (40%) consultees had 
been woken as a result of activities they believed to be linked to licensed premises, with 17 
(13%) who felt that there were too many licensed premises within the vicinity. 

 
2.3.3 Observational Studies 
 
Licensing Team 
 
The observational study took place between November 2010 and March 2011 on 14 
occasions during  Friday and Saturday nights. 
 
The licensing data showed that 88 (91%) of the premises within the proposed area were 
open during the hours’ of 8pm and 2am.  In addition from the 119 premises within the 
proposed area, who were permitted to sell alcohol, 91% were authorised to sell during the 
hours of 8pm to 2am.  For this reason the observational study took place during those 
hours  
 
The proposed area was divided into 10 sections, and officers located themselves at 
various points.  Each point was observed continuously during the hours of 8pm and 2pm. 
 
The details of the anti social behaviour by location has been summarised at Appendix B, 
Table One.  
 
The most recorded behaviours included littering at 22%, followed by street drinking at 
21%, rowdy behaviour at 15% and noise from customers leaving premises at 13%.   
Vomiting, criminal damage and fighting was less frequently observed at less then 1%.  
Other anti social behaviours recorded included excess noise from licensed premises, 
intimidation and urination. 
 

Page 29



 

 6

Officers observed the street drinking activities and found that some patrons leaving some 
licensed premises continued drinking in the street and that there was also evidence of 
‘pre-loading’ with cheaper alcoholic drinks purchased from off licences before entering on 
premises.   
 
The data shows that whilst the majority of observed incidents occurred to the eastern and 
central sections, the west did account for 17% of the behaviours which included littering, 
noise from customers leaving premises, excess noise from licensed premises, rowdy 
behaviour and street drinking.   
 
The times when the incidences of anti social behaviour occurred can be seen at Appendix 
B, Table Two.  77% of the incidents occurred between the hours of 9pm and 1am with the 
lowest recorded instances between the hours of 8pm and 9pm and 1am and 2am.   
 
In comparison to the closing hours of the licensed premises detailed in sub-section 2.1.4 
above, 57% of the premises in the proposed area are open during the times where most 
incidents were reported.   
 
The full results for the observational study conducted by the licensing team can be seen in 
the Shepherd’s Bush Cumulative Impact Study which is listed as a background document. 
 
Independent Specialist 
 
The observational study took place between February 2011 and April 2011 on 8 occasions 
from Thursday to Sunday between the hours of 8pm and 3am.  One expert, from MAKE 
Associates, covered all 10 sections at 30 observation points during this period and each 
point was observed once.  
 
The average number of incidents recorded by area can be seen at Appendix B, Table 
Three The most recorded incidents were in the eastern and central area which was 
observed for a total of 29 hours.  The western area was only observed for 11.5 hours and 
accounted for 6% of the incidents. 
 
71% of the incidents occurred between the hours of 10pm and 2am with the lowest 
recorded instances between the hours of 8pm and 9pm and 2am and 3am.  Incidents 
recorded on a Saturday and Sundays equated to 85% with 13% on a Friday. 
 
The times when the incidents on anti social behaviour occurred can be seen at Appendix B 
Table Four, and the days when the incidents occurred can be seen at Table Five. 
 
Finally the details of the anti social behaviour by location has been summarised at 
Appendix B, Table Six. The data shows that the most recorded behaviours included noise 
from customers leaving premises at 18%, public drinking at 18%, and littering at 18%. 
Vomiting, criminal damage, intimidation and fighting was less frequently observed.  Other 
behaviours recorded included urination, swearing, rowdy behaviour and excess noise from 
licensed premises. 
 
The full report, which is part of the Cumulative Impact Study, highlighted the following: 
 
• Littering, specifically linked to takeaways is a major problem in terms of ‘street 

scene’ and levels of litter get much worse as the night progresses. 

Page 30



 

 7

• The density of off-licences appears to contribute directly to street drinking as people 
are often observed buying drink from these stores, opening bottles and cans and 
then drinking while walking. 

 
• The majority of incidents are located around Shepherd’s Bush Green and the more 

easterly ends of Goldhawk and Uxbridge roads. Limited problems were noted at the 
more westerly extremes of these two roads and Askew Road, which connects them. 

 
• There are few more serious incidents, such as fighting, intimidation or criminal 

damage. Of the latter, what does occur tends to be smashed windows. 
 
2.3.4 Summary – Data Analysis 
 
In summary the results from the survey to residents and businesses who reported anti 
social behaviour was compared against the observational findings which are detailed 
below: 
 
 

No. of responses/recorded 
incidents 

Top 7 anti social behaviour incidents witnessed Consultation MAKE LBHF 
Littering 474 118 359 
Noise – From customers leaving premises 296 119 216 
Street Drinking / Drinking in the street Not asked* 119 342 
Public Urination 425 88 46 
Swearing 412 38 178 
Rowdy Behaviour 410 35 249 
Vomiting 413 9 5 

 
Overall the data was consistent and it can be seen in the table above that street drinking, 
noise from customers leaving premises rowdy behaviour and littering were of main 
concern. 
 
*Respondents were not asked whether they had witnessed street drinking.  However the 
respondents expressed their concerns in relation to street drinking under the final 
comments section where one respondent commented that “During the summer there are 
often people drinking on the street here who have clearly bought alcohol cheaply at the 
nearby shops”.   
 
The evidence appears to show a link between the hours for licensed premises in the 
proposed area and increased levels of anti social behaviour. 
 
In summary: 
 
• The Council’s observational study shows that instances of anti social behaviour 

reached their peak between 00:00 and 01:00 (453 instances - almost double the 
245 instances recorded between 21:00 and 22:00).  The most common types of 
behaviours recorded by officers were street drinking, littering and rowdy behaviour.  
Street drinking was observed by patrons leaving licensed premises and there was 
evidence of pre-loading taking place. 

 
• Littering and public urination were the top two types of anti social behaviour 

reported by residents.   

Page 31



 

 8

• The report by the independent specialist  shows a similar peak of instances (235) 
between 23:00 and 00:00 hours with 40% of observations being carried on a 
Sunday. Street drinking and littering were recorded within their top three most 
common behaviours recorded. 

 
• Information received from the Council’s Performance and Information Team 

shows that the number of alcohol related instances to which the Ambulance service 
respond peaks in a similar way between 21:00 and 23:59.  

 
• The Police data on crime and disorder statistics showed that 36 licensed premises 

in the proposed zone accounted for 1095 reported incidents between 2007 and 
2011, equating to an average of 252 reported incidents a year.  Furthermore, 2 of 
the licensed premises accounted for 57% of the reported incidents. The Police 
response can be seen at Appendix C. 

 
The crime and disorder incidents recorded, included the following: 
 

• Bag Snatches 
• Possession of drugs  
• Drug Trafficking 
• Common Assault 
• Theft and pick pocketing  
• Violence 
• Sexual offences 
• Harassment 
• Grievous Bodily harm (GBH) and Actual Bodily harm (ABH). 

 
• The Safer Neighbourhoods Division reported that:  

 
� Shepherd’s Bush Green has the highest rate of crime and antisocial 

behaviour in the borough for this reason the Council has funded the only 24 
hour, 7 day a week police Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT) in the Country, 
comprising of five times the number of officers of a normal SNT. 

� There has been an increase by 21% of notifiable offences in 2010/11 which 
have been linked with the night time economy. 

� Shepherd’s Bush has the highest numbers of street drinking complaints in 
the borough. 

� Users of pubs often migrate to premises who offer late night refreshments 
which means that the safe and quiet dispersal of these groups is made more 
difficult. 

 
• The Trading Standards team reported that from 107 premises visited in the 

proposed area, there have been 32 sales of age restricted products such as alcohol 
and cigarettes resulting in a failure rate of 29.9% in comparison to 18.8% in other 
areas of the Borough. 

 
• Waste and Street Services reported that the cleaning problems associated with 

this area are urination, vomiting, and staining of the pavement. They also reported 
that there are problems with overproduction from businesses, and raised complaints 
regarding events venues generating litter which could add to additional costs for the 
Council. 

 

Page 32



 

 9

• Environment Protection Team statistics shows that from 2005 – 2010 they 
received a total of 419 complaints (average of 70 a year), and conducted 238 
inspections (average of 40 a year) at the licensed premises in the proposed area.  
The complaints were relating to noise and other pubic nuisance relating to licensed 
premises with the area indicated and were often exacerbated by the concentration 
and nature of licensed premises in the area.   

 
2.3.5 Formal Consultation 
 
A draft Special Licensing Policy  for the Shepherd’s Bush area went out for a 12 week 
consultation between 14th March 2011 to 10th June 2011.  All residents and businesses in 
the proposed and surrounding area were consulted.  In addition all of the bodies listed at 
Section 2.2.6 of this report were notified.   The consultation pack is listed as a background 
document with the full consultation responses. 
 
Consultees were invited to comment on the proposed draft policy and proposed area and 
provide any additional evidence in support of or against the need for such a policy. The 
consultation questionnaire contained the policy and a copy of the proposed area, however 
following the data analysis, the proposed area was broken down into 3 zones (east, central 
and west)  Residents and businesses were given the opportunity to advise which zones, if 
any, they would like the special licensing policy to be implemented in. 
 
The consultation was made available on the Council’s consultation portal and a letter was 
sent to over 8,400 consultees. The questionnaire was also available by post upon request 
and was advertised with H&F News, on the Council’s website, through the libraries, and in 
the Shepherd’s Bush newsletter.  In addition, officers attended local pub watch meetings, 
and residents meetings encouraging them to provide their views.  
 
The service received a total of 162 completed questionnaires. From 124 online responses 
107 (86%) of the responses were from local residents and 3 (2%) from Councillors.  Only 1 
response was received from someone who worked in or managed licensed premises. The 
other responses came from other businesses, representative bodies, responsible 
authorities and other organisations. 
 
Out of 123 online responses, 57 (46%)of the respondents live 0-50 metres away from the 
closest licensed premises, 54 (43%) who live between 51 – 200 metres away, 6 (4%) lived 
more than 200m away and 6 (4%) did not know the distance.   
 
Out of 122 online responses, 108 (88%) of the respondents felt that the draft special 
licensing policy was clearly written and easy to understand and 104 (85%) felt that the 
length of the policy was ‘About Right’.  However one consultee suggested that the policy 
could be made clearer by detailing what the four licensing objectives were.  This has been 
inserted in the proposed  policy at Appendix A. 
 
Out of 122 online responses, 56 (45%) visited licensed premises on a weekly basis, with 
32 (26%) who visited licensed premises on a monthly basis.  12 (9%) visited every 3 
months, 7 (5%) visited every 6 months and 5 (4%) visited daily. Only 10 (8%) respondents 
stated they never visited licensed premises.   
 
When asked about the proposed area, from the 130 online responses, 76 (58%) felt that 
the policy should apply to all  Zones with 10 (7%) against the proposed area.  18 (13%) felt 
it should apply to only Zone 1, 18 (13%) felt it should apply to only Zone 2 and 8 (6%) felt it 
should apply to only Zone 3.   

Page 33



 

 10

 
Consultees were asked which types of licensed premises they felt the policy should cover, 
the results of which can be seen in the table below, which are based on 112 online 
responses: 
 

Types of Premises Number of 
responses 

% of 
responses 

Night Clubs 87 78% 
Off Licences 84 75% 

Bars 82 73% 
Pubs 77 69% 

Late Night Refreshments 74 66% 
Social Clubs 58 52% 
Restaurants 35 31% 

Other 17 15% 
 
It is clear from the results that respondents felt the policy should cover nightclubs, off 
licences, bars, pubs, and late night refreshments venues, with social clubs and restaurants 
at the bottom of the list.  
 
Other premises respondents felt should be covered by the policy included, shisha bars and 
football clubs.  If any shisha bars or football clubs provide any licensable activities, they 
would be included under the proposed policy, however traditionally shisha bars do not 
carry out any licensable activities so in normal circumstances would fall outside the remit 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Respondents were given the opportunity to provide further comments. Full formal 
consultation responses are listed as a background document.  Overall the responses were 
in favour of the policy and some had concerns about restricting the policy to include 
reduced zones as they felt the problem may relocate into other zones.   
 
2.4 Comments 
 
2.4.1 Environment and Residents Services Select Committee 
 
The introduction of a special licensing policy was considered at the Environment and 
Residents Services Select Committee with invited trade and resident representatives on 
the 5th April 2011.  It was resolved that: the proposals to establish a Special Licensing 
Policy in Shepherd’s Bush be endorsed. 
 
3. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 The licensing authority can only consider matters within the scope of the Licensing 

Act and statutory guidance documents and cannot become involved in the moral 
issues relating to licensing. 

 
3.2 Considerations must be given to the four licensing objectives, as well as providing the 

necessary protection to residents, whilst promoting greater choice and flexibility to 
businesses and their customers. The four licensing objectives are: 

 
• The prevention of crime and disorder • Public safety 
• The prevention of public nuisance • The protection of children from harm 

Page 34



 

 11

 
3.3 The policy will only affect new and variations of licence applications and there will be 

further onus on the licensees and applicants to show their business will uphold the 
four licensing objectives.   

 
The Licensing Authority will be empowered to reject new applications and restrict 
changes to existing licences when a valid representation is received in relation to an 
application. 

 
3.4 Each application will be considered on its own merits and the presumption of refusal 

in this policy is not absolute.   
 
3.5 There will not be a fixed limit on the number of premises in the proposed zone, nor will 

the policy impose fixed trading hours. 
 
4. CONCLUSION  
 
4.1 Based on the evidence and observational data, it was clear a considerable amount of 

negative activity associated with the night time economy of the Shepherd’s Bush area 
within the proposed boundaries was identified. Overall consultees during the survey 
and formal consultation were in favour of adopting the policy to cover the whole of the 
proposed area. 

 
4.2 It was evident that the cumulative impact is being caused not only by on-licensed 

premises but also that off licences and late night refreshment venues contributed to 
the impact.  During the observational study and review of all the data, specific 
problems relating to the impact of off licence premises and late night refreshment 
venues was highlighted.  This included street drinking, ”pre-loading”, and underage 
sales, all of which was apparent in the proposed area.  In addition, overall consultees 
during the survey and 12 week consultation were in favour of including the range of 
licensed premises.  For this reason the proposed policy has been amended to cover 
all licensed premises.   

 
4.3 In view of the evidence obtained, the special licensing policy for the proposed 

Shepherd’s Bush area is both necessary and appropriate in order to strengthen and 
support the promotion of the four licensing objectives. 

 
5. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE 
 SERVICES 
 
5.1 There are approximately 140 licence premises affected by this special licensing 

policy in the Shepherd’s Bush area.  The total estimated income from annual 
licence fees due on the anniversary of the initial grant of licence is approximately 
£24,200.  

 
5.2 The additional workload for officers will not be a significant burden and can be offset 

by the saving for costs associated with policing and reactive inspections.  Adopting 
the policy could potentially give rise to more appeals from applicants if their 
applications are not granted based on the “cumulative Impact”.  However, 
experience from the Fulham town centre scheme indicate that all costs can be 
contained within current budgets. 

 
 

Page 35



 

 12

 
6. COMMENTS OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 
 SERVICES)  
 

6.1 Any special licensing policy has to be adopted at a meeting of the full council.  In 
making any decision to adopt such a policy the council has to do so with the object 
of promoting the four licensing policies of (i) the prevention of crime and disorder; (ii) 
public safety, (iii) the prevention of public nuisance and (iv) the protection of children 
from harm. 

 
6.2 Once approved the special licensing policy will create a rebuttable presumption that 

applications for new and variations of existing premises licences that are likely to 
add to the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, following relevant 
representations, unless the applicant can demonstrate in their operating schedule 
that there will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES 

 
• APPENDIX A Proposed Special Licensing Policy for Shepherd’s Bush and proposed  

area.  
• APPENDIX B Observational Study summary results 
• APPENDIX C Metropolitan Police response 
 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
No. Description of 

Background Papers 
Name/Ext. of 
Holder of File/Copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Shepherd’s Bush Cumulative  
Impact Study 

S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
2. List of Consultees S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
3. Formal Consultation Pack S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
4. Formal Consultation Responses S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
5. Press Articles S Manji ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
6. Statement of Licensing Policy  

2011 
S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 

7. Licensing Act 2003 S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
8. Guidance Issued under section  

182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 

9. Equality Impact Assessment S Manji, ext 3392 ENV-PPS/ HTHX 
Responsible officer:  Miss Sanju Manji, 6th Floor, Hammersmith Town Hall Extension,  
                                 Tel; 020 8753 3392  sanju.manji@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 36



APPENDIX A 
London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham 

Special Licensing Policy for  
Shepherd’s Bush Area 

 
1.  The Council has decided to introduce a special policy relating to cumulative 
impact (as provided by the Secretary of State in the Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (paragraphs 13.24 to 13.39) and the Council’s own 
Statement of Licensing policy dated January 2011 (paragraph 6.1 to 6.7) to the 
Shepherd’s Bush Area (being the area outlined and all premises which have a 
principal form of access onto the outlined area as shown on the attached map). 
 
2. “Cumulative impact” means the potential impact on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in 
one area.   
 
3.  The four licensing objectives are:- 
 

• The prevention of Crime and Disorder 
• Public Safety 
• The prevention of Public Nuisance 
• The protection of Children from Harm 
• Protection  

 
4. This policy will apply to all licensed premises as the Shepherd’s Bush Area has 
been identified as being adversely affected in terms of the licensing objectives 
because of the cumulative impact of the concentration of licensed premises.  
 
5. There is evidence that the cumulative impact includes serious problems of crime, 
disorder and public nuisance.  Having regard to the evidence, the Licensing 
Authority has been satisfied that it is appropriate and necessary to include an 
approach to cumulative impact.  The evidence for this special policy may be viewed 
on request at the Council Offices. 
 
6. Applications for new premises licences, club premises certificates or any 
variations within the Shepherd’s Bush Area  that are likely to add to the existing 
cumulative impact will normally be refused where a relevant representation has 
been made, unless the applicant can demonstrate that there will be no negative 
cumulative impact on one or more of the four licensing objectives.  Accordingly, the 
presumption of refusal in this policy is not absolute and the circumstances of each 
application will be considered where a relevant representation has been made. 
 
7. The presumption of refusal does not relieve responsible authorities or interested 
parties of the need to make a relevant representation.  Applicants will need to 
address the special policy issues in their operating schedules. If there are no 
representations the licensing authority must grant the application in terms consistent 
with the operating schedule submitted.   
 
8. The cumulative impact policy will be kept under review by the Licensing 
Authority. 

Page 37



 

AREA COVERED BY THE SPECIAL 
LICENSING POLICY IN THE 
SHEPHERD’S BUSH AREA 

P
age 38



APPENDIX B 
Observational Study Results 

 
 

Licensing Team – Summary of Observational Data 
 

TABLE ONE: Recordings of Anti Social Behaviour by location 
Anti Social 
Behaviours Proposed Area 

 East 
Central 
East Central West Total 

Littering  65 37 97 51 23 33 20 2 22 9 359 (22%) 
Street Drinking  49 34 42 40 51 54 19 14 17 22 342 (21%) 
Rowdy Behaviour 20 44 66 17 41 10 12 18 16 5 249 (15%) 
Noise – customers 
leaving premises 8 30 63 26 13 53 2 11 7 3 216 (13%) 
Swearing  25 37 23 23 29 19 2 5 10 5 178 (11%) 
Excess noise from 
licensed premises 0 16 42 2 1 25 0 15 0 7 108 (7%) 
Intimidation  12 29 10 4 28 12 2 0 5 3 105 (6%) 
Urination  19 0 8 4 0 9 0 1 3 2 46   (3%) 
Other 0 3 2 0 0 1 6 3 0 1 16   (1%) 
Criminal damage/ 
vandalism 5 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 8    (0.5%) 
Fighting  1 0 2 0 1 2 0 1 0 1 8    (0.5%) 
Vomiting 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 5    (0.2) 
Total by location 206  231  357  167  189  218  63 70 80 59    
 
 

TABLE TWO:  Recordings of total number of incidences by time 
Between Total No. of Incidences recorded 

8pm to 9pm 180 (11%) 
9pm to 10pm 245 (14%) 
10pm to 11pm 273 (16%) 
11pm to 12am 335 (20%) 
12am to 1am 453 (27%) 
1am to 2am 201 (12%) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



Independent Specialist – Summary of Observational Data 
 

TABLE THREE:  Recordings of incidences by area. 
Incidences by Area 

 East Central East Central West Total 
No. Incidences  125 (19%) 51 (8%) 384 (59%) 54 (8%) 2 (1%) 17 (3%) 9 (2%) 654 
No. Hours 14 9 6 8 4 4 3.5 52 
Av. Incidences 9 6 64 7 1 4 3 13 

 
TABLE FOUR:  Recordings of number of incidences by time 

Incidences by Time 
Between Total No. of Incidences recorded No. Hours Average Incidences 

8pm to 9pm 61   (9%) 8 8 
9pm to 10pm 47   (7%) 8 6 
10pm to 11pm 87   (13%) 8 11 
11pm to 12am 235 (36%) 8 29 
12am to 1am 83  (13%) 8 10 
1am to 2am 124 (19%) 8 16 
1am to 2am 17   (3%) 4 4 
Total 654 52 84 
 

TABLE FIVE: Recorded incidences by day 
Incidences by Day 

Day Total No. of Incidences recorded No. Days Average Incidences 
Thursday 5     (1%) 1 5 
Friday 86   (13%) 2 43 
Saturday 293 (45%) 2 147 
Sunday 270 (41%) 3 90 
Total 654 8 82 

 
TABLE SIX: Recordings of behaviour by location 

Incidences by Type 
Behaviour Incidences 
Noise – customers leaving premises 119 (18%) 
Public Drinking 119 (18%) 
Littering  118 (18%) 
Other 99   (15%) 
Urination  88   (13%) 
Swearing  38    (6%) 
Rowdy Behaviour 35    (5%) 
Vomiting 9      (1%) 
Excess noise from licensed premises 9      (1%) 
Fighting  9      (1%) 
Intimidation  6      (1%) 
Criminal damage/ vandalism 5      (1%) 
Total  654 

 

Page 40



 
 

APPENDIX C  
Police Response 

 FH - Hammersmith & Fulham 
Borough 

   
Adrian Overton 
 
Licensing Officer 
 
Hammersmith and Fulham Borough Council 
Hammersmith Town Hall Extension 
King Street 
W6 9JU 
 
 
 

 
Fulham Police Station 
Heckfield Place 
London 
SW6 5NL 
Telephone: 02082462886 
Facsimile:   
Email: Stuart.Ratcliffe@met.police.uk 
www.met.police.uk 
Your ref:  
Our ref:  
9th June 2011 
 

 Dear Mr Overton, 
I am writing in my position as Licensing Sergeant for Hammersmith and Fulham Borough 
Police in response to your consultation for a Cumulative Impact Policy for the area of 
Shepherds Bush and its environs. Police fully support the Licensing Authorities proposals 
in introducing this policy and believe that it will have a positive impact on the reduction of 
crime and disorder in the Shepherds Bush Area. This is based on the following key 
areas. 
Shepherds Bush Geographical Area 
The area of Shepherds Bush is geographically centred around Shepherds Bush Green. 
This area is a landmark on the borough. This area has historically provided the borough 
of Hammersmith and Fulham with its most challenging policing neighbourhood. This 
neighbourhood has a broad spectrum of policing concerns which range from street 
drinking, drug issues, the policing of a Queens Park Rangers Football Club and the 
arrival of Europe’s largest shopping centre. Within this tapestry of policing issues there 
lies the issue of alcohol related crime and disorder. The area has 36 premises that can 
be described as pubs/bars/clubs and a further 114 premises that account for off licence, 
restaurants and take away food outlets.  This forms a considerable network of licensed 
premises that cater for most preferences. Police believe that there is no further need for 
alcohol led premises in Shepherds Bush.  
 Police Crime Data 
Shepherds Bush Green is a borough ‘hotspot’ for crime. The area is lined by licensed 
premises that provide both on and off sales. Police are of the opinion that the number of 
premises in this area is sufficient to meet the needs of patrons. 
Police data regarding crime in licensed premises has been provided to the licensing 
authority. Police data shows crime linked to 36 licensed premises across the last five 
years. The data shows the following points that are relevant to the licensing objectives. 
The data demonstrates that the key type of offences committed in licensed premises 
relate to theft and assault. 

Page 41



In terms of theft, this has largely been theft of unattended personal property from patrons 
of establishments. From viewing a cross section of crime reports these offences 
generally involve drunken victims having their property removed from their person or 
taken whilst left unattended in the premises. This contributes to a considerable number 
of total offences across the borough.  
In terms of assaults, these range from common assaults through to grievous bodily harm. 
These are serious offences where victims have been attacked within premises. This data 
does not account for incidents of assault that have occurred directly after persons leaving 
premises.  
The data demonstrates that a large proportion of offences occur between 1900 and 0400 
hours. These are the time periods when licensed premises are at their busiest. These 
are also the time periods when police resources are most stretched. Any addition to the 
number of premises would increase the demand on police resources.   
Off licence Sales 
During the Crime Summit in March 2011 key feedback was provided to police regarding 
licensing issues around off licences in Shepherds Bush. There were clear community 
concerns raised about the sale of alcohol to street drinkers in Shepherds Bush and the 
after hours unlicensed sale of alcohol. These concerns are corroborated by recent police 
proactive action and intelligence received. The impact of this on crime and disorder is 
significant in the Shepherds Bush area.  
By operating late hours off licences continue to provide alcohol to customers who 
continue to drink after the closure of on licensed premises.  These persons continue to 
drink without the limitations and the safety measure provided by on licensed premises. 
This is witnessed and dealt with on a regular basis by the local safer neighbourhood 
team. There are a considerable number of off licences premises in the Shepherds Bush 
area. In an area where the re-occurring community complaint is that of street drinking on 
Shepherds Bush Green and its environs, police believe it would be responsible to include 
off sales within this policy. This would also assist with the successful policing of the 
premises that already exist. 
Take Away Food outlets 
The area of the proposed Cumulative Impact Policy contains a considerable number of 
take away food outlets. Police believe that it would be reasonable for premises with a 
late night refreshment licence to be included within the Cumulative Impact Policy. These 
premises contribute to crime and disorder in the area and nuisance behaviour. The 
premises provide for the sale of food stuffs after licensed premises close. This 
encourages persons to remain in the area rather than dispersing. As a result, flashpoints 
occur between drunk people. These flashpoints occur in premises which are generally 
small in size, short in staff numbers and without regulated security staff. As a result the 
area around Shepherds Bush Green, Uxbridge Road and Goldhawk Road is 
considerably affected by crime and nuisance behaviour associated with these premises. 
Local residents regularly complain to police regarding issues surrounding take away food 
outlets in this area. Police believe that to include this type of premises within the 
Cumulative Impact Policy would be both timely and reasonable.  
 

Page 42



Police Resources 
Hammersmith and Fulham Borough Police have a dedicated Safer Neighbourhood Team 
in Shepherds Bush. This team works with the community and take their priorities from 
the community. Street drinking and alcohol led crime is one of the ward priorities. The 
local policing team deals with this proactively through the use of controlled drinking 
legislation and proactive patrolling. This stretches police resources. It takes police 
officers away from dealing with other ward and borough issues. Any increase, in any 
form, of licensed premises will continue to put pressure on police resources. By limiting 
the growth of licensing activity in this area the cumulative impact policy would in turn 
provide an effective safe guard against any unnecessary and further increase of crime 
and it's associated nuisance behaviour. Police resources are committed to deal with the 
boroughs licensing issues as they are, any further increase will begin to undermine 
results achieved to date.  
Fulham CIP 
In August 2010 police responded to the Licensing Authorities Statement of Licensing 
Policy. In this response police welcomed the possibility of a Cumulative Impact Policy 
being developed in the Shepherds Bush Area. Police are supportive of the proposal for 
Shepherds Bush. The benefits of a Cumulative Impact Policy on the borough can be 
seen in the Fulham Broadway area. In Fulham the benefits have been significant. The 
policy works alongside the controlled drinking zone and safer neighbourhood policing in 
order to prevent any further saturation of the area, allowing police and partner agencies 
to effectively deal with the issues that already exist without the addition or complication of 
further issues. This has been applied to both on and off licenses. The policy has 
contributed to a reduction in alcohol related offences in the area. Furthermore, it has 
contributed to a change in the style of drinking in the vicinity of Fulham Broadway. Police 
would note that premises are now largely food led rather than led by vertical drinking 
considerations. In the opinion of police this has contributed to a change in the character 
of patrons using Fulham Broadway and assisted in a reduction in crime. 
In summary, Police fully support the introduction of a Cumulative Impact Policy in the 
Shepherds Bush Area. Police regard this as a policy, which alongside controlled drinking 
legislation and Safer Neighbourhood policing, has the potential to have a positive effect 
on the reduction of crime in the Shepherds Bush area. A CIP has been proven to work in 
other parts of the borough, and police would argue that any introduction of this policy in 
Shepherds Bush would have a greater impact than in Fulham. Police Crime data 
demonstrates that drink related offences in Shepherds Bush are of a considerable 
quantity and timing to justify the police support of this policy. Police resources are 
currently stretched in dealing with the amount of premises that are already licensed in 
the Shepherds Bush area. Any further saturation of the area would reasonably be 
expected to increase crime and disorder and have a negative effect on residents, 
visitors, workers and businesses that are already present in the area.  
Submitted for your information and consideration 
Stuart Ratcliffe 
Licensing Sergeant 
Hammersmith and Fulham Borough Police 

Page 43



 

Last updated: 15th October 2010  

 
 

LICENSING ACTION GROUP (LAG) 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
1. The Members of the LAG consist of the following agencies;- 
 

i. Licensing Authority 
ii. Metropolitan Police 
iii. Fire Brigade 
iv. Trading Standards 
v. Environment Protection 
vi. Commercial Services 
vii. Planning 
viii. Drug and Alcohol Action Team 
ix. Community Safety  
 
Please note a representative must be sent if a member of the Group is unable to attend 
the meeting. 
 

2. The LAG will meet on a fortnightly basis to discuss licence applications, licensing issues and 
joint enforcement/action. 

 
3. The purpose of this group is to facilitate effective communication and working arrangements 

within the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham in relation to promoting the four 
licensing objectives set out in the Licensing Act 2003.   

 
4. Members of the LAG will sign up to a MoU and Joint Enforcement Protocol to assist with the 

promotion of the 4 licensing objectives. 
 
5. The group will share best practice an exchange information.  It will adopt a problem 
solving and collaborative way of working within the Borough. 

 
6. The group will consider the following factors to determine whether a business should 
be classified as ‘Problem Premises’.   

 
• More than one complaint from separate residents or interested parties over a two 
month period. 

• Issues raised from one or more Responsible Authority.  
• More than 1 breach of condition in a 3 month period. 
• Serious assault(s) at the premises; e.g. ABH, knife/gun crime. 
• Premises considered to be a crime generator e.g. drugs. 
 
 

Page 44



Page 1 of 3 

Appendix  6 - Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2003 proposed changes 
 
Changes to the Application Process 
 
Currently, applicants can detail how they will promote the Licensing Objectives, on their 
Operating Schedule. The Government plan to expand upon this by creating a new section 
to the application form where applicants must specify how they have taken into 
consideration the impact their application will have on the local area. The intention behind 
this change is to shift the onus onto the applicant to give greater consideration to the local 
area when setting out the steps that they will take to promote the licensing objectives. It is 
hoped that this amendment will reduce any negative impact a premises may have on local 
residents.  
 
In addition, when dealing with a licence application the Licensing Authority are only 
allowed to impose conditions and make decisions which it feels are “necessary” to 
promote the Licensing Objectives. The new proposals intend to replace the word 
“necessary” with “appropriate”. The intention of this amendment is to lower the burden of 
proof placed on licensing authorities in making their decision. Under the proposals,  
Licensing Authorities will now be able to use their knowledge and experience in making 
such decisions without the need for substantial proof. 
 
Currently, representations made against licensing applications must be from Responsible 
Authorities, Interested Parties and residents who live within the vicinity of the premises. 
The Government intend to remove this restriction so that residents in a wider area can 
submit representations or indeed call a licence in for review. Representations must still be 
relevant and focus on one or more of the Licensing Objectives. 
 
Finally, the Government has included a proposal to require Licensing Authorities to accept 
all representations from the police and adopt all their recommendations unless there is 
clear evidence that these are not relevant. This amendment will give greater weight to 
representations received by the police than to any other representation. 
 
Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMROs) 
 
A further proposal of the Rebalancing of the Licensing Act is to give Council’s the power to 
impose EMROs on certain areas of the borough. An EMRO restricts licensed premises 
from trading during certain hours. For example if an EMRO was imposed from 2am until 
6am, it would mean that no licensed premises could be open after 2am or before 6am on 
whichever days of the week the EMRO is in force. 
 
This could mean that certain premises who operate late at night may find their hours 
reduced if their premises falls in an EMRO zone. It is at the Licensing Authority’s discretion 
whether EMROs are introduced and the Licensing Authority would only take such steps if it 
is felt that the Licensing Objectives were not being met by a group of licensed premises in 
a particular area. 
 
Health Authorities 
 
There are numerous Responsible Authorities who can make representations based on any 
of the 4 objectives, these include the Police, Fire Brigade, Trading Standards, 
Environmental Protection and Health and Safety.  
 

Page 45



Page 2 of 3 

The new proposals set out by the Government initially intended to create a 5th Licensing 
Objective entitled “The prevention of health harm”. The government has since stated that it 
does not intend to introduce a new objective for the time being. However, the Government 
do intend to introduce Health Authorities (currently Primary Care Trusts) as a Responsible 
Authority. This means that Health Authorities will be able to comment on licence 
applications and call licences in for review. Health Authorities will be able to use their 
knowledge and statistics relating to certain premises to support any representations. 
 
Licensing Authorities as Responsible Authorities 
 
One of the main functions of the Licensing Authority is to deal with all applications made 
under the Licensing Act 2003. These include applications for new premises licences, 
variations, transfers, personal licences etc.  
 
Currently the Licensing Authority processes the application and manages any incoming 
representations. The Licensing Authority are then responsible for granting the licence or 
arranging  a licensing sub-committee hearing to determine the application. Throughout the 
whole process, the Licensing Authority remains impartial and cannot object to applications. 
 
Under the new proposals this will all change. The Licensing Authorities will become a 
Responsible Authority and will be able to make comments/representations/objections on 
all applications. This means that Licensing Officers can use their local knowledge and any 
history the premises may have (including previous breaches and offences) to make 
representations on certain applications which they feel do not promote any of the four 
Licensing Objectives. In serious cases, the Licensing Authority may also have the power to 
call a licence in for a review. 
 
Licensing Fees 
 
Licensing fees for applications and the annual maintenance fee payable under the 
Licensing Act have not been altered since the Act was implemented in 2005.  
 
Currently the fees do not cover the costs that Councils incur as a result of processing 
these applications and enforcing the law. A number of proposals are currently being 
discussed to alter the current standard fees. 
 
One proposal is that licence fees will be based on full cost recovery. In simple terms, the 
total fee paid annually by the premises amounts to the cost incurred by the council as a 
result of that premises. Naturally, it would be largely impossible to work this figure out for 
each individual premises so it is likely that premises will be placed in a “fee category” as a 
result of their risk rating. Risk ratings can increase or decrease dependent on how well 
premises comply with their licence. 
 
An additional proposal is the introduction of a Late Night Levy. A Late Night Levy is an 
additional fee paid by premises that trade after a certain time in the evening. The 
Government have stated that they feel it is right that those premises which benefit 
financially from a safe night time economy should contribute towards the costs of 
maintaining that safety (extra policing). It is not yet known what the levy might be and 
which premises will be affected., however premises closing before midnight are unlikely to 
be impacted by the levy. It is also believed that premises will be offered a chance to vary 
their premises licence free of charge to reduce their hours if they do not wish to pay the 
levy. 

Page 46



Page 3 of 3 

 
A final proposal in relation to fees is the introduction of penalties for non payment of 
annual fees. Currently, those who do not pay their annual fees are referred to the Council’s 
debt recovery where the debt is pursued. Under the new proposals, a licence will be 
automatically suspended should a debt not be paid. This means that carrying out any 
licensable activities would be an offence and could result in a prosecution and loss of 
earnings. 
 
Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 
 
Currently, an applicant for a TEN must give 10 working days notice of an event and 
provide a copy of the application to the Police, who then have 2 working days to object on 
the grounds of crime and disorder if they so choose. Under the proposed amendments, the 
Responsible Authority for the prevention of public nuisance (Environmental Protection) will 
also be able to object to TENs. This may mean that TENs can also be refused on the basis 
of public nuisance. 
 
The new proposals also intend to increase the time that the Police have to object from 2 
working days to 3 working days. 
 
In addition, TENs could have conditions attached to them similar to those attached to 
premises licences. These conditions could be imposed by Environmental Protection or the 
Police and failure to comply with them could result in legal proceedings being taken 
against the applicant. Licensed premises which apply for TENs as an extension of hours 
may also have their licence conditions automatically transferred onto a TEN. 
 
Currently, a single TEN allows upto 96 hours of licensable activity. The Government are 
considering changing this as well to limit of the number of TENs any one premises can 
have in a calendar year. 
 
Underage Sales 
 
The Government has proposed to make changes to the way that premises who sell 
alcohol to those underage are dealt with. The first change is that the maximum penalty 
which can be imposed by a court will increase from £10,000 to £20,000. 
 
The second change is to introduce a 48 hours minimum and two weeks maximum closure 
period as an alternative to prosecution for persistently selling alcohol to underage persons. 
The Government has defined “persistently” selling alcohol to children as selling to children 
twice or more in a three month period. It is hoped that the reality of closing a business for 
up to 2 weeks or a fine of up to £20,000 will deter premises from selling alcohol to those 
underage. 

Page 47


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 Annual Licensing Update
	Appendix 1 - PPS FTE Structure 1st April 2011
	Appendix 2 - Licensing applications 2010-11 (2)
	Appendix 2 - Licensing applications 2010-11
	Appendix 3 - Cases of interest
	Appendix 4 - Full Council Report SB CIP
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix 5 - LAG Terms of Reference
	Appendix  6 - Rebalancing the Licensing Act 2003 proposed changes


